
Minutes 

 

1 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Meeting details 

Date: Monday, September 11, 2023 

Time: 10:00am - 12:00 pm 
Location: Zoom 
 
 
Committee members and alternates present 

 
 
Committee members and alternates absent 
 

 
Employee Representatives 

• Sybill Hyppolite, Washington State Labor Council  

• Cindy Richardson, UNITE HERE Local 8 

• Josh Swanson, Operating Engineers 302 
 

Employer Representatives 

• Bob Battles, Association of Washington Business 

• Josie Cummings, Building Industry Association of 
Washington  
 

General Public Representatives 

• Anne Paxton, Unemployment Law Project 
 

 

• Julia Gorton, Washington Hospitality 
Association 

• Tammie Hetrick, Washington Food 
Industry Association (employee rep) 

• Monica Holland, Northwest Justice Project 
(alternate public rep) 

• Joe Kendo, WA State Labor Council 

• Allyson O’Malley-Jones, Northwest Justice 
Project (alternate public rep) 

• William Westmoreland, Pac Mtn WF Dev 
Council 

• Brenda Wiest, Teamsters 117 

• Courtney Williams, Community 
Employment Alliance (public rep) 
 
 

ESD staff  

• Joy Adams 

• Danielle Cruver 

• Joshua Dye 

• Vaughn Ellis 

• Colin Helsley 

• Caitlyn Jekel 

• Matt LaPalm 

• Marypat Meuli 

• Scott Michael 

• JR Richards 

• Stephanie Sams 

 

Unemployment Insurance 
Advisory Committee 



Minutes 

 

2 

 

 

• Dan Zeitlin 
 

 

Summary 

 

Meeting Recorded 
This meeting was recorded and also livestreamed by TVW.  

 
Welcome and Opening Remarks 

Unemployment Insurance Customer Support Director, JR Richards, welcomed everyone and asked 
committee assistant Colin Helsley to call roll.  

 

Meeting Minutes 

JR Richards requested that everyone review the August 2nd, 2023 UIAC meeting minutes which were 
emailed to committee members prior, and to provide their feedback. Sybill Hyppolite made a motion 
to approve the minutes and Cindy Richardson seconded the motion. All in favor said “aye”, no 
members said “nay”. The August 2nd, 2023 meeting minutes were approved.  
 
Agenda  
JR Richards reviewed the following agenda items (also see Addendum I.) 

• Legislative and budget submissions to OFM/Governor's office 

• Minimum Weekly Benefit Amount report 

• Rulemaking update 

• Brief on wildfires 

• Overpayment updates 

 
 

Legislative and budget submissions to OFM/Governor's office 
JR Richards handed the meeting over to Caitlyn Jekel, Government Relations Director, ESD, to 
provide updates on ESD’s legislative and budget submissions to the Office of Financial 
Management/Governor’s office. 

 

Caitlyn presented on the following slides: 

https://tvw.org/video/unemployment-insurance-advisory-committee-2023091058/?eventID=2023091058


Minutes 

 

3 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Caitlyn then requested feedback on these three agency request bills from the committee. Josh Swanson 
made a motion of support for the bills. Bob Battles seconded and asked what specifically was being 
asked of the votes. Caitlyn answered that the ask was for support of the agency moving forward with 
submission of these bills for the 2024 legislative session. The vote was put forward and the motion was 
passed with majority “aye” votes. There were no votes in opposition. Anne Paxton declined to vote.    

 



Minutes 

 

4 

 

 

Caitlyn then handed the floor to Sophal Espiritu, Funds Manager, ESD to provide a briefing on the 
2024 Unemployment Insurance decision packages that will be submitted by ESD to OFM. Sophal 
presented on the following two slides. 

 

 
 

Minimum Weekly Benefit Amount Report 

JR thanked Caitlyn and Sophal and handed the floor to Matt Klein, Operations Research Specialist, 
ESD to provide the Minimum Weekly Benefit Amount Report. JR added that committee members 
would receive a copy of the report after the meeting. Matt then presented on the following slides. 



Minutes 

 

5 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 

 

6 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 

 

7 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 

 

8 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 

 

9 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 

 

10 

 

 

 

 
 

Matt concluded his presentation, and JR opened the floor for questions/comments.  

 

Sybill Hyppolite thanked Matt for sharing this research and added that it’s interesting to see what’s 
possible when we invest in workers.  

 

Bob Battles asked if the final report would be sent out to committee members as it contained a lot of 
data. JR answered affirmatively and stated that that committee members would have a chance to look 
over the final report ahead of the next UIAC meeting. Caitlyn Jekel added that this report contains a 
section in closing for stakeholder positions. So, in addition to the two briefings presented at this 
meeting, ESD will also take written comments from business and labor.  

 

Anne Paxton asked a question regarding the measurement of benefit to employers in the form of the 
number of claimants whose home address is within 2 miles with the storefront, and how this was 
considered a significant effect of employers. Matt answered that the best way to measure this would be 
to collect a bank statement from each person to see what they are spending money on specifically. 
ESD does not have this information but does have information on company revenues and local 
expenditures, so this data will be leveraged to answer that question as best as possible.  

 

At this time, the meeting was paused for a 10-minute break.  



Minutes 

 

11 

 

 

 

Rulemaking Update 

Upon return from the break, JR handed the floor to Stephanie Frazee, Legislation and Rules 
Coordinator, ESD to present ESD’s rulemaking update. Stephanie proceeded to present information 
from the following slides. 

 

 

 
 

Bob Battles then asked when the deadline is for implementing the voluntary quits rule. Stephanie 
responded that the bill had staggered deadlines, so there are various deadlines in 2024.  



Minutes 

 

12 

 

 

Stephanie then advanced to the following slide to discuss emergency rulemaking. 

 
 

At this juncture, Bob Battles commented that wildfires are not a surprise, noted past misuse of 
emergency rules by state agencies, and asked why there are emergency rules on wildfires when they 
occur every year. Stephanie answered that ESD will be working on permanent rules regarding wildfires 
in the near future. Bob expressed appreciation for the response and underlined the ongoing concern 
that wildfires are not an appropriate use of emergency rules.   

 

Stephanie then advanced to the next slide to cover the following bullet points. 

 
 

JR thanked Stephanie for joining and acknowledged Bob’s comment and the need for built-in rules 
regarding wildfires in order to avoid the need for emergency rules.  

 

JR then handed the floor to Steve Ruggles, Business Products Manager, ESD to provide a brief on the 
agency response to the impact of wildfires to citizens across the state. Steve presented information 
from the following slides. 



Minutes 

 

13 

 

 

 

 
 

Sybil Hyppolite asked whether there is a sense of how many people have been impacted or might need 
support at this time. Steve answered that he knew of nine impacted individuals that claimed 
unemployment insurance due to the fires. He added that if Disaster Unemployment Assistance (DUA) 
is approved, there is not an estimation at this time of how many people will need assistance. 

 

Anne Paxton asked if there is any data on potential abuse of emergency rules that Bob was alluding to. 
Steve answered that ESD does not have this information, but that fraud is a part of the discussions in 
preparation for the implementation of the DUA program. 

 

JR thanked Steve for joining and transitioned to the next agenda topic: Overpayment Project Update. 
JR presented information from the following slide. 



Minutes 

 

14 

 

 

 
 

Anne Paxton expressed appreciation for the work done on this project and asked whether ESD had 
investigated the possibility of texting for use in outreach on the overpayment waivers. JR answered that 
this would be a matter of whether the system is set up for texting, and that in order for individuals to 
receive texts from ESD, they would have to opt-in. JR added that she will look further into this and 
follow up with Anne.  

 

 

Future Agenda Topics 

JR gave an overview of the following future meeting topics and asked for feedback. 

▪ Legislative Session Updates 

▪ Rulemaking Updates  

▪ Overpayments Project Updates 

▪ Appeals Backlog Updates  

▪ Other?  

 

Anne commented that she would like to receive updates on the Navigator Grant project. JR responded 
that this would be captured and that she’s excited to provide updates on that topic. 

 

Public Comments 

JR reminded meeting participants that if they would like their comments captured in the meeting 
minutes to please email them to Camille.galeno@esd.wa.gov  

 

Action Items 

• A copy of the Minimum Weekly Benefit Amount Report will be emailed to committee 
members upon its completion (committee members received this report via email on 
9/19/2023). 

• Updates on the Navigator Grant Project to be added to future UIAC agendas. 

 

Adjourned 

JR Richards thanked everyone for joining today and ended the meeting. 

mailto:Camille.galeno@esd.wa.gov


Minutes 

 

15 

 

 

Next meeting 

 

October 18, 2023, from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. via Zoom.  



Minutes 

 

16 

 

 

Addendum 1 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

  



Minutes 

 

17 

 

 

Addendum II 

 


